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It was the Grand River that made Parkman. It may seem only an idle summer stream to us today, flowing its carefree way. But once, it 

lived up to its name, and the little village sprawled along its beautiful banks, one hundred and some years ago was one of Geauga 

County's most important towns; twice its present size. Waterwheels and mills of all sorts including foundries, grist mills and many 

more enticed many pioneers, including Samuel Parkman and his associates who bought seventeen thousand and six hundred acres in 

the sight of the beautiful river. The six hundred acres were set aside for the village. Mose Warren was the first surveyor, then Samuel's 

nephew became interested. He realized the capabilities and possibilities. In 1803 he married 

Lucy Phelps, daughter of Judge Phelps of Aurora, New York. Their 1804 bridal journey was by 

horseback. Later when Mrs. Parkman came, they made it by water and horseback. The road was 

very rough and Mrs. Parkman carried the baby in her arms and walked. In 1804 the legislature 

appropriated fourteen hundred dollars toward a road through Trumbull County, which then 

included Geauga County. Mr. Parkman's first object was to secure its location to be most 

beneficial to Parkman Township. As soon as the location was established, they fell trees with the 

help of neighboring townships; Nelson, Farmington, and Burton. At the raising of log cabins, 

Mrs. Umber field of Burton baked bread which was brought through the woods on horseback 

while Alfred Phelps, Robert's brother-in-law, broiled pork and together with the milk from Mr. 

Parkmanô s cows, which he had brought, comprised the feast. In 1805 Mr. Parkman was 

appointed postmaster, a position which he held until 1829. In 1805 he contracted with Mr. 

Zabine Weatherby of Warren to clear a space of one hundred acres north of the square and fence 

it, paying fourteen hundred dollars. In the autumn they planted wheat, and in 1806 they harvested 

one thousand bushels of wheat. There was no appliance for winnowing it, so they had to take it 

to Painesville for grinding.  

(Photo above is of Robert Parkman) 

Mr. Weatherby built several cabins to accommodate the workmen and Mrs. Weatherby cooked for the men while clearing the land. 

This land lay north from what is now public square - bordered on the north by Burton Road. In August of 1805 Mr. Young and Mr. 

Bateman came to Parkman from New York. Mr. Young was a builder and soon had built a few more substantial cabins. He purchased 

tools from Pittsburg amounting to tow pounds, nineteen schillings and nine dimes. Mr. Bateman had a farm east of center, which was 

later owned by Mr. Phelps and later by Andrew Hosmer. Mr. Batemanôs name was perpetuated by a little stream running through his 

farm called Batemanôs Run. In 1805 the first child in Parkman was born to Robert Parkman who called their first daughter, Adaline. 

She grew, amid primitive surroundings, to be a common beauty and at the age of eighteen she married Julian C. Huntington of 

Painesville where she lived until her death.  

In 1805 Richard Wallace purchased a farm known as Wallace Farm.  In 1806 a grist mill was completed after much planning and 

many trips to Warren for materials by Mr. Parkman. It was located a little north of the first saw mill on the Grand River, a little above 

where the last and more grist mill has stood for many years. Mr. Samuel Parkman congratulated his nephew for having acquired a 

carpenter, a hatter (Kirkland) who had material to start the business, a blacksmith, and a shoemaker.  The first marriage in Parkman 

was that of Mr. Kirkland and the young sister of Mr. Parkman in 1808. As we had no magistrate in Parkman, Mr. Eleazar Hickox of 

Burton solemnized the marriage. They had a home on the east side of the river nearly across from the grist mill.  Mr. Kirkland was a 

man of fine character and fine education. He was active in helping to sustain early religious worship. He also became a Justice of 

Peace. 

Mr. Moyer was another man of classified education, a graduate of Yale College.   He taught the first school in Parkman. He and Mr. 

Edward Paine assumed the duties of the Clerks of the Supreme Court of Geauga County.  

The third house was built by Daniel Evans in 1806. He was a blacksmith, the first one in Parkman. Before he came to Parkman all 

blacksmith work had to be taken to Warren or Painesville. Mr. Evans' shop was located on the south side of the square. He was called 

the village blacksmith for forty years. Mr. & Mrs. Evans had a large family. Mrs. Evans was a helpmate to her husband and a most 

valuable member of the community. Even with her own large family, she could always help others. Mr. Evans purchased a farm, but 

moved to another state. However, his two sons purchased land nearby. His son, Silas Evans, bought White Thorn Bottom on 

Farmington Road near the eastern part of the township. He still lived there in 1877, the only pioneer left. Thomas Ainslee, a native of 

England, came to Ohio in 1806. He built the fourth house west of the square. Mr. Risby also built a log house west of the square and 

planted the second apple orchard in the village. A log house was built on the south side of the square, an appendage of the blacksmith 



shop, and was occupied by the family of Mr. Eldred, successor to Mr. Evans. The bright light from their fireplace together with the 

blaze from the shop illuminated all space around the town. When Mr. Eldred moved from the town house, it went to decay. In 1848 

Marvin Chapin built a store on this site, but it was destroyed by fire. 

Mr. Johnston built a shoe store, also used as a post office and the upper part was owned by the Masonic Fraternity. He was post master 

during the administration of Pierce and Buchanan. Mr. Holombe bought the store and enlarged it; it was then bought by Sherbern 

Williams and Halstead. In 1872 the building was purchased by John L. More and later purchased by Smith & Phillis.   

In 1808 the first frame building was built by Mr. Parkman for use as a store.  One of Mr. Parkmanôs family, Mr. Paine, was clerk and 

the store was called Parkman & Paine. This was the only store in the western part of the county with the exception of the Hickox store. 

It was dissolved in 1816 and enlarged until 1877. 

In 1810 Ezra Smith of Connecticut purchased a farm east of center on the south side of Farmington Road known as the Ridge Farm. 

He built a house and planted an orchard. James Smith took over the farm, but moved to the Curtis Farm, and it was later owned by J. 

R. Brown. The Ridge Farm commanded a beautiful view for thirty miles. In 1812 Lewis Smith, brother of Ezra Smith, carne from 

Middlesex County, Connecticut, joined the army,  returned and married Murella Stillman, widow of Jon Stillrnan who was killed in 

the War of 1812. He and his father bought land lying west of Thomas Moore. The farm was later owned by William Brown. 

 In 1812 Mr. Nathan Hanchett, a clothier from Trurnbull County, set up in the upper part of the grist mill the first carding machine in 

town-. People coming over rough roads to the grist mill brought wool for carding.  

Thomas Moore from Pennsylvania settled on a farm, opposite the Evansô place in 1807. He built a log cabin, then a frame house. He 

and his wife were members of the Methodist Church, and in 1816 they and a few others united in forming a church of that 

denomination which existed for sixty years. The meetings were held in Mrs. Moore:s home for years 

In 1807 Robert Parkman built a house on the north side where one hundred acres were cleared.  That same year his second son, Henry 

Seymore, was the first male child born in Parkman. He grew up, became a pioneer and a civil engineer. He began in that capacity on 

the Ohio Canal. After a year his health did not warrant his continuance of that profession. He returned to Parkman and later bought the 

Doty Farm where he remained until his death. Mr. Parkman had planted apple trees on that farm. A few of the trees planted in 1812 

were still standing, but most were transferred by John P. Converse to his land where most of them were still standing in 1878.  

John Wallworth Parkman died in 1813, this was the first death in Parkman. Mary Wood died in 1817 and was buried in the lower 

cemetery, where two acres had been reserved and continues as yet. 

 In 1817, Mrs. Converse, wife of John P. Converse, died after only a year of marriage, leaving an infant.  Mr. John P. Converse from 

Orange County, Vermont, and more recently Cuyugo, New York, came to Parkman in 1818 and purchased a lot on the east side of the 

village bordered on the west by Middlefield Road and on the south side by Route 422. On the south side was an unfinished house, in 

the spring he moved it and made a place of entertainment and a hotel until 1833. In 1820 Mr. Parkman and Mr. Converse built and 

owned a distillery which stood not far from the bridge. It was considered a great addition to the business interests of Parkman 

Township and furnished a medium of exchange for commodities to Pittsburgh and other markets. After the death of his first wife, Mr. 

Converse married Hann Parkman, youngest sister of Robert, at Westmoreland, New York. He became one of the most active and 

untiring businessmen. He built a saw mill, and. manufactured linseed oil. This was the only linseed oil business in the vicinity and 

created a ready market for flax seed, a valuable commodity. In 1822 they erected a paper mill on the river, above the oil mill, that was 

later made into a flour mill which burned in 1833. Soon after coming to Parkman he bought land and built a cabin. He later built a 

very substantial house high on the hill which is still standing, known as the Mintern place. He did so much to open up northern Ohio 

for settlement, that there should be a historical marker out in front of this home telling his story to posterity. Mr. Converse with others 

contracted to carry mail from Fairport to Poland, Trumbull County. Suitable accommodations for the public were enlarged into a daily 

four-horse post coach. Previous to that the mail had been carried once a week on horseback. The route traveled through Chardon, 

Burton, Parkman and Warren. Prior to railroads it was the main line of travel. The route later reached Sandusky, Monroe and Detroit.  

In felling timbers in the Spring of 1823 an accident occurred. It was the death of Asa Pattio, one of the workmen. That was the first 

tragedy to hit Parkman.  

In 1810 Mr. Hanchett built a mill for carding and cloth dressing about one mile up the river to which he transferred his business. Mr. 

& Mrs. Hanchett were original members of the Congregational Church, organized in 1823. The northern part of the Hanchett place 

was later owned by Noble Rood and is now owned by the Roswell Blair family. They are a very nice family. Their grandfather was 



Charles Blair who was a good farmer on Grove Road. Roswell and Vera were his children. Roswellôs children are: Evelyn, Dorothy, 

Vernon, David, and Dale all living in Parkman and Roger and Robert living in Florida and Middlefield 

In 1812, Alonza Hosrner came to Parkman when only fourteen years old. He and his brother William, bought a large tract of land 

extending to Middlefield Road situated on Mesopotamia Road (we call it Nash Road). He married Elizabeth Cooper after the death of 

his first wife, Asenath Biddlecomb; to whom were born eleven children. During his residence in Parkman of sixty-four years as a boy 

and a man, he was noted for those qualities which form the staple of American character. With industry, energy, perseverance and 

self-reliance he laid the foundation of a prosperous life. He died at the age of seventy-nine and was buried with Masonic Rites. Only 

three persons were living here who had been here in 1812. 

Daniel Owen came to Youngstown from Connecticut. In 1800 he moved to Nelson and then to Parkman in 1815. He bought land east 

of the Wallace Farm. In 1827 the house on the Wallace Farm was destroyed by fire, but he soon replaced it and lived there until his 

death in 1856 at the age of eighty-nine. Mrs. Owen was a woman of high esteem. She cared for the sick and offered assistance to 

anyone who needed her services. Daniel Owen's oldest son was Samuel Owen. He owned a portion of the old Owen Farm and resided 

there. He also bought a farm lying north of the old farm. This land was originally owned by Gideon Bently.   Mr. Owen's oldest 

daughter, Mrs. Swift, still owned the homestead in 1880 and his other daughter, Mrs. Dunn, and son, Rensellear, were living in the 

township in 1878. Samuel Owen married Emily Griswold, born in Windsor, Canada, in 1844. They had a son named Marvin. Marvin 

had two sons; Fred and Frank Owen. Fred married Nell Donaldson of one of the pioneer families who lived down in little Ireland.  

Fred owned the big farm called "Reservation Farm" where many Indian relics and artifacts were found. He built a big barn which still 

stands. They later sold their farm and moved to Parkman town. They had two daughters: Arlene and Jeanette. Arleen was a teacher, 

and a good one, for many years. She married Frank Yost from Garrettsville. They had a sweet daughter Nelda who married Ron 

Friend, a county agent. Nelda is also a teacher. Arleen and Frank also have a son Jack who is well educated and married and lives in 

California. Jeanette was a very good county nurse and loved by everyone. She married Cliff Warner, also a resident of Parkman. He 

was a devoted businessman. They have two very well educated sons who live in California. Frank Owen married Ruby Newcomb, 

also from a pioneer family and had two sons, namely: Melbern and Walter. Ruby died in 1920 during a measles epidemic. Melbern 

was an energetic and prosperous farmer. He has sold his farm and built a lovely home on Route 422. He married Louise Hawton who 

worked in the Middlefield Bank for several years and is a very nice lady. Walter Owen is deceased.  

One of the early settlers in 1817 was Alexander Dunn from Monroe County, New York.  He bought a farm adjoining Mr. Fairbanks on 

the south road toward Warren. He was a carpenter and immediately began building a schoolhouse and Masonic Lodge. They had 

school that summer. Alfred Phelps taught in 1817 and 1818. It was quite a good building for those times. It superceded the small log 

cabin in which Mr. Moyer had been the teacher. This was located a few rods east of the village on land then owned by O. C. Smith 

and now by Mr. & Mrs. Jim Sitko. In 1825 Mr. Dunn married Betsy Owen, daughter of Daniel Owen of whom we spoke before. I 

believe that Mr. & Mrs. Dunn were great grandparents of Frank, Forrest and Ray Cone. Also great great grandparents of Arleen and 

Jeanette, Melbern and Walter, Marie and Pauline, Forrest and Alen Owen, and Norma and Mary. Mr. Dunn's death occurred in 1875. 

He had lived on the same farm for fifty years. He was a man of gentle and unassuming manners and was greatly esteemed both as a 

neighbor and citizen. He served in the War of 1812. Mr. Fairbanks was promoted to Captain and Mr. Dunn promoted to Ensign and 

then to Major, sometimes called Captain Dunn. His widow, son, and daughter still lived in that house in 1880. Mr. Dunn was an early 

member of Masonic Lodge, instituted in 1817.  

The Dunn's had four children; three daughters namely: Melissa, Betty, and Betsy who married three Smith Brothers who came to 

Parkman from Connecticut. Melissa married Orlando and they had two children: Hatti who married Vollney Johnson and Clate who 

married Ida Blair. There were two Blair girls, Ida and May Blair who married Mr. Hoxter. Returning to the Dunn sisters, Betty Dunn 

married Nuel Smith. They had a boy, Leon Smith; Betty died when he was two or three years old. Betsy Dunn married Orville Smith. 

They had a baby girl who was Flora Cone, mother of Frank, Ray, and Forrest. However, Betsy died when Flora was about a year old 

and Grandma Dunn practically raised the little children. Owen Dunn was running the farm and Captain Dunn died at age seventy-nine. 

Flora Cone said that when her grandfather was ill the doctor had to come to Farmington on the train and they met him with the horse 

and buggy. On the south side of the Grand River in section 23, near the Dunn Farm was once an Indian burial place, from which 

human bones, arrowheads, pottery, etc. have been extracted. 

Not long after the settlement of Thomas Moore, his brother-in-law, James Donaldsonð a native of Ireland, bought a farm south of 

that of Henry Morton upon which he built a log house, where he lived until his death in 1863. The farm was bought by Marvin Owen, 

son of Samuel Owen. Mrs. Nathanial Moore, daughter of Sam Owen, was still living in Parkman in 1878. James and Samuel 

Donaldson were both soldiers in the War of 1812. In 1816, Benjamin Moore, brother of Thomas, purchased a farm directly south of 

Samuel Donaldson, later owned by Marvin Owen. Mr. Ineman, a brother-in-law, bought the land and then sold it to Hiram Donaldson, 



son-in-law of Nathanial Moore, who built a frame house and sold it to his brother John L. Moore. The Mooreôs, Donaldsonôs, Owenôs, 

Crosses and the Evanses, along with Edward Thorpe, a native of Ireland, contributed to the idea of that corner of Parkman Township 

being known as Little Ireland. The Edward Thorpe farm was inherited by John Thorpe who was Adjutant in the War of the Rebellion 

and it has been known as the Thorpe Farm for many years. It was then bought by Mr. George Hasman from Twinsburg, who is both a 

banker and a farmer. Mr. & Mrs. Hasman are much appreciated in our town; always helping where needed. They have four lovely 

children: Susan, Michael, Crystal, and John. 

Now we will mention the Moore's again, John L. Moore and his son, Curt, who married Ada Garber. They were parents of John and 

Marion, who live on top of the hill, next to the church. They are both noted for their love of Nature and the protection of birds.  Must 

mention the Garberôs, Ada's parents. They had lived in Parkman for many years. John, Marion and Hilda Norton are the only relatives 

living here in 1976.  The Garbers lived on Farmington Road and later on Route 422, previously owned by Ellsworth Owen.  There 

were five Owen girls whose father was Ellsworth, brother of 

George and cousin of Melbern's father, Frank Owen. The girls 

names were: Nor ma, Rachel, Mary, Ruth and Marvel. Norma 

and Mary are living in California. Another family who lived on 

Warren Road (Route 422) was Elmer Mintern and his sons Leon 

and Walter. We have mentioned Route 422 and Farmington 

Road, now we will mention a little more about Mespotamia 

Road or Nash Road. The Thomas Moores came to Parkman from 

Pennsylvania. They organized the Methodist Church and, with a 

few other families, held meetings in their homes in 1816. - Later 

on in 1841, with an increased membership, they built a church in 

the western section of town on land donated by Mr. Parkman. In 

1858 by exchanges of lots, the building was moved across the 

street and entirely rebuilt. For over one hundred years it was 

used as a service for the community. It was sold to the Catholic 

Church in 1920, and used until a new and beautiful church was 

built. 

 

Speaking of the Moores on Mespotamia Road (or Nash Road), the Moores owned a large portion of land extending to Chandlers 

corners. Part of it was later purchased by a Mr. Kitlingher who built a nice home. He had four daughters: Pearl, Ruth, Arline and Reba. 

The Kitlingher home was later bought by Wesly Stoll. The next farm west was bought by Durlin Stoll who married Pearl Kitlingher, 

such fine people. Pearl and Durlin had two daughters, Arline and Luva and one son, Rollin. Arline has two daughters and Luva has 

two daughters and two sons. Rollin has one married daughter and four sons. Also, a very nice family. Pearl is a great worker and a 

good cook. Elizabeth, wife of Wesley, was a teacher and a fine lady. They had a daughter, Eileen Mahon, who is enthusiastic like her 

mother, and a son Elmer. Also, another nice family.  Part of the Moore property was later owned by Samuel Ohl, father of War, 

Madison, Calvin, Fran, and John, and daughters: Em, Maria, Julia, and Effie Coulter. Mr. Coulter operated the grist mill. Joe and 

Maria Lengel live on the farm once owned by Paul Clapp, before belonging to Spencer Brown. They are very hard working farmers. 

They have a daughter, Rose Marie Fuller, and a son, Joe Jr., who married Kathy Rose. Rollin Stoll lives on the farm which was owned 

by Mr. War Ohl. Mr. John Ohl owned the farm now owned by George Brown. One time this farm was managed by Mr. Tucker who 

had a remarkable family. There were six girls: Esther, Anna, Roberta, Gertrude (deceased), Elnora, and Virginia; and boys: Paul, 

Bertram, and Wendolyn. They all graduated from Parkman High School and many of them attended college.  

The Moore family had descendants on that road until a few years ago. Mr. Jeff Moore and Mattie Dow both owned farms there too. 

Jeff Moore had three daughters: Victoria' Mottinger, Ruby and Dorthy Hillock. They were fine people. Dorothy died about four years 

ago. She and Frank were fine citizens. Two other families were the Browns and the Clapps. Charles Brown owned the farm across 

from the N. E. Moss farm which then belonged to Mr. Mintern who lived to the age of ninety. Clapps, the parents of Alta Cross, lone 

Pursek, and Chester who married Margaret Newcomb, lived in the Spencer Brown place before Joe Lengel bought it. They too were 

fine citizens.  

Want to mention the George Mintern family. They had five children: Elmer, Wilbur, Frank, Stella, and Luella. Frank died with 

pneumonia at age 23, and Luella died very young with typhoid fever while teaching. They were an outstanding family. Elmer, a 

carpenter, Wilbur, a businessman, and Stella Cromwell, were very energetic and interested people who helped our town in many ways. 



Elmer's sons were: Leon, who was a carpenter and the janitor of the Community House for nearly twenty years, and Walter, a teacher 

and banker who married Cherrie Reed, a lovely lady and a teacher also.  

Corning back to the family of Madison Ohl, he had three daughters: Ruby, Rena, and Rose, and a son, Roy, who died when he was in 

his twenties ð such a likable fellow. Roy and his wife, Ethel (Little), had a son Robert and a daughter Cathryn (Adams). It is hard to 

find a better auctioneer than Bob Ohl. Cathryn married Wayne Adams and is a business lady. Bob married Betty McConnell. They had 

two daughters: Judy (Mathews) and Kathy; and a son, Ricky. They all have active families.  

On the same road north of the one Sylvestor Hosmer lived was a home owned by Mr. Haight, then by Mr. Bert Cook, and now by Pete 

Weaver. South of that was Edward Ketchum home and it is now owned by Mr. Kimak, who built a new house. 

South of that was the Madison Ohl farm. Madison and Katie had three daughters and a son. Their daughter Ruby married Albert 

Komandt. They had three girls: Edith, Joanne and Hazel; and five boys: Albert Jr., Richard, Ralph, Haro and Adelbert. Ralph, 

Richard, and Haro are no longer living. Albert Jr. has been very active in civic affairs, as well as in Masonic and Eastern Star 

organizations and church. His wife, Mary (McConnell), is also very active in Eastern Star and church. A fine couple, they have three 

sons: Dale, Gerald, and Paul Wayne ðvery energetic young men. They have six nice grandchildren.  

On the Hosmer Road there have been many new homes built on land that once belonged to Steve Soltis. This land was sold to Mr. 

Hudson and then divided into lots. Some of our very nice new owners are Dale and Nancy Koscelnik, Dan and Linda Workman, and 

Alvin and Mary Troyer. Mrs. Steve Soltis and her daughter, Helen, also have a new home. Dave and Nancy Holmes and their parents 

live on the road as well. There is a big farm on Hosmer Road that was once owned by John Ohls and by Frank Hosmer for many years 

and later by Mahlon Mast. It is now being run by Mr. Byler. 

Farther south is another farm that was owned by Fred Owen about sixty years ago. It was later owned by Frank Hosmer, then by 

Lavere Potter, and is now owned by Merle Owen. It was known as the Reservation Farm, where many relics and artifacts were found. 

Merle ' is a prosperous dairy farmer. There are now also three gas wells on this farm. Chester Hosmer, who owned the land deeded to 

him by his father, Sylvester, had three children: Sylvester, Lee and a daughter: Stella. Stella married Ray Cone ðthey were a fine 

family. Perry Hosmer and his sister Amelia Harrington and their families lived on the West side of the road. Frank, son of Perry and 

his wife, had a large dairy farm. After the house burned in 1918, Frank bought the large farm of John Ohl. Perry Hosmer died in 1923. 

The farm was sold to Mr. Roper, then to Dr. Satchett, then to Edgar Beamer, and is now owned by David Dietz, a prosperous dairy 

farmer. David and Madelaine have two nice children:  John and Karen. They are a fine family. Madelaine helps in Mother's Club, 

Women's Fellowship, and church.  

We will not go to Newcomb Road where Mr. Pitkin lived in what at one time was known as Negro settlement because there were two 

negro families living there. Franklin Smith lived there in 1843 and it was sold to Mr. Otis Newcomb in 1860. Or man and Otis 

Newcomb bought another farm from Thomas Cudjews just south of Mr. Pitkin. Orman Newcomb built a house which was destroyed 

by fire and built another in which he lived until 1878. His son, Frank Newcomb, was a soldier in the 112th Regiment in the War of the 

Rebellion. As we remember, there were three Newcomb farms on that road owned by father and brothers: Andy, Charles,, and 

Wallace. Charles Newcombôs daughter, Ruby, married Frank Owen.  

The first settlement on the west road was in 1818 by Joseph Terry. On the east side of the road Mr. Silvernail and then Mr. Potter. The 

next house was owned by James Brown in 1856. James Brown's father bought the Percival farm, then owned by Mr. Young, then by 

Mr. Scott, and then by Mr. Brown. Thomas Brown was a soldier in the War of 1812. His son, Reuben, was a member of the cavalry in 

the War of 1812 where he died. Mr. Pitner moved to the village untill 1867 when he moved to Indiana, but his family returned to 

Parkman. I am sure we all remember Russ Pitner, grandson of Henry, who was a soldier in the 105th regiment in the War of the 

Rebellion. The family erected a commodious dwelling in the village on the northern part of the land originally owned by John P. 

Converse in 1872. Russ Pitner lived where Glen Thompson lives now. He later lived in several other homes. Russ was a painter and 

paper-hanger. He married Maude Donaldson, sister of Mrs. Fred Owen and granddaughter of Thomas Donaldson. There were two 

Pitner children: Lillian and Myron (deceased). 

The land comprising the farm and mill site were bounded on the north by Troy Road and was owned by E. L. Bailey. He built a lovely 

home and a large family was raised there. There is quite a history in the memory of that old home. It is now owned by Monroe Mill er. 

In 1812 Mr. Elizah Ford, a native of Plainfield, Massachusetts, emigrated to Ohio. After a stay in Burton where he married Miss 

Esther Johnson, he purchased a farm in Troy in 1831, but soon moved over the line into Parkman. He left his good neighbors Morton 

and Peck, and bought a farm nearer the village which is known as Ford's corners. Mr. Ford's daughter, Mame, was born in 1820 and 



married George Fram. Mr. Ford was a commissioned Sergeant of the Militia Rifle Company, through all grades, he rose to Colonel of 

the 5th Regiment and died in 1852. Mr. & Mrs. Fram were very strong members in the Congregational Church; their voices could 

always be heard in the village choir. They were greatly missed when they sold their farm and moved to Warren. They had two sons: 

Horace, who married Mamie Jolly, and Howard. Horace and Mamie had three sons: Ralph, Robert and Forrest; and an adopted 

daughter. Horace was a farmer, but later moved to Chagrin Falls. For many years they operated the Fram Gas Co. now known as the 

Ugite Gas Co. Howard Fram had a fine education and was a principal and also assistant county superintendent. He was a fine musician 

and at one time directed the famous Parkman Buckeye Band. He was later a banker in Warren. There are no decendants of the Frams 

or Fords remaining in Parkman in 1976.  

Dr. John Scott, a native of Vermont, was born in Newbury in 1791. His father, John Scott Sr., came from Glasgow, Scotland. When 

Dr. John was a boy his love of studies was fed by the perusal of such books as fell within his reach. He studied by the blazing fire of 

pine knots. He began the study of medicine under tuition of Dr. James Dennison of Royalton, Vermont. He entered Dartmouth College 

and graduated in 1817. He made a trip to Ohio on horseback, where he met Mr. Paine who persuaded him to come to Parkman. He 

settled here and entered the practice of medicine to which he was very devoted. He lived here all but two years of his lifeð which 

time he was appointed Assistant Judge of Geauga County. He was school director in 1821. He built a house in the northern part of the 

village where he and his family lived for thirty-one years. I believe this house is now the parsonage for the Congregational Church. 

This house was later owned by Mary Parkman. Dr. Scott also loved literature and was one of the earliest members of the Masonic 

Lodge. His brother bought land on the west side of Burton Road and built a tannery and a house which was later owned by John 

Browning and later by Melvin Norton.  

Another important man in the town in 1817 was Sherbern Williams, a native of Salem, Connecticut, and a later resident of New York, 

from which he came to Parkman. Possibly, because he was an acquaintance of the Phelps family, he became quite a businessman.  

There were three Brown families. South of Mr. Potter was the farm owned by Jim Brown and the northern part by William Harnmell, 

sold to Mr. Patchin in 1843, and bought by James Brown in 1850. Frank, son of Jim, was very active in civic affairs and was a board 

member for many years. He took the assessment of population, etc. He had two children: Marion, a teacher and a clerk of the school 

board who later became very ill with arthritis, and Kenneth, a very hard worker and a fine man. Another Brown brother, Brad, was a 

farmer and a hard worker. He had two sons and a daughter. His son Earl lived on the farm and married Hattie Haizlet ða very nice 

couple. He was a trustee for many years and died of a stroke. Brad's other son, Pearl, married Josephine Sperry. He was postmaster in 

Middlefield for many years. The daughter, Edith, married Forrest Bidlack 

They had two daughters: Vernelie and Lucille. Vernelle married and had four children before her husband died. She then married Sy 

Russelðthey are a lovely family. Lucille was a fine musician and worked in a bank. She married Frank Lewis, a banker, and now live 

in Warren. They have three children. They are an enjoyable family and a credit to their community. Brad's son, Pearl, is now deceased. 

Edith lives in her grandfather's, Jim Brown, house. Must mention that Mrs. Brown was Lyda Norton, from a pioneer family, and at 

one time lived in the home where Mrs. Darlin Stoll lives.  

There were three families of Towns on Newconib Road, namely: Roy, Perry and Ray. Roy had a daughter, Vida, and a son, Clark. 

They were jovial people. Roy and his wife were, at one time, caretakers of the County Home. Ray Town had three daughters: Myrtle 

Aspinwall, Tressie Bruggman (she and her husband were drowned in an accident on Farmmgton Road), and Elsie Phillips, who now 

lives in California. They were also excellent teachers.  

The Goffs, Jollys and Hopkins later lived on Burton Road. The Patches lived on Patch Road and Nash Road was named for Mr. John 

Nash.  

The first family west on Main Market or Route 422, are the Nagys who are nice people. Next were the two pioneer Bennett families, 

namely: Bushnell and Andrew Bennett. Mr. Kilby bought the Andrew Bennett farm. Mr. & Mrs. Kilby had five children: Alice, living 

in Florida, Henry who married Ethel Kilby, Dorothy who married Bernard Olmstead, Carl who now lives in Cleveland, and Mildred 

who lives in Claridon. Henry was killed in an automobile accident several years ago. He and Ethel had three lovely daughters: Carol, 

Alice, and Debbie ðall great workers like their mother. Dorothy was a teacher for many years and a good one. She has a daughter 

Linda who is married and teaches in Burton. Her son, Bonnie, is a junior in high school. We must mention the Olmstead's. They were 

grand people who lived on the road south and over the white bridge for many years before moving to Parkman. Mr. Olmstead was 

postmaster until retirement. They had four boys and two girls: Bernard, Bert, Bruce, Carl, Ruth, and Wanda. Ruth married Bill 

Maiden, and Wanda married Andy Csorna and lives in Northfield. Ruth and Bill live in Arizona and Carl lives in Parkman. Bert and 

Bernard are both deceased.  



The Urpis' were a remarkable family. They lived in Illinois a short time and spent the rest of their lives in Parkman; first on farms and 

later in the heart of town. Uno, the eldest, was a teacher in Newbury School. He married Josephine Gunn, a teacher and an elementary 

supervisor in Geauga County schools. He died of a heart attack. Don lives in Aurora, Helvi Horwath died in 1975, and Willie and 

Allie live with Ethel on the farm once known as the Andrew Bennett farm. We are proud of the Urpi family and the parents who 

worked very hard and sent their children to school. All of them graduated from Parkman High. I forgot Lila who is married and is also 

a teacher with two nice children.  

East of the Bennett farms were the Carter and Burton farms. Mr. Lee Burton's father owned the farm which was bought by George 

Irwin. Mr. Burton was a teacher in Parkman's early school. Mr. Irwin paid a good price for one hundred, thirty-two and one-half acres, 

as he came from Holmes County where land was more expensive. Mr. George Irwin married Barbara Wolfe from Dundee and they 

had five children: Mary, Arthur, Carl, Wyman, and Oscar. Mary married Neil Rice and had three children: George, Helen, and 

Jimrnie. George had five children. Helen had three children: two daughters, Wilde, and one son, 

Repasky; both Mr. Wilde and Mr. Repasky are deceased.  Jimmie had a daughter and a son. Wyman married Lyda Harper and they 

had two very fine daughters: Genevieve and Dorothy.  Arthur went west, married, and bought land in Washington State. He owned 

some land that was taken by Coulee Reservoir near Coulee Dam. They had seven children, all of whom are living in the west. Carl, 

who was a prosperous farmer, married Margaret Harrison of Middlefield. She was a lovely lady who died in 1966. They had one 

daughter, Ruth, who is a teacher and business lady. She married Stanley Sitko, an ambitious farmer and realtor. Oscar married Bethel 

Hosmer. He went to World War I and on his return they bought the farm where they now live. He was a good farmer, both with 

poultry and dairy. He delivered eggs to Cleveland for thirty-five years and retired in 1968.  

Farther east were the Williams farms ð at one time Sherbern and later Fred Williams. Mr. Ferry bought their farm. He was a builder 

and a good one. His wife, Doris, was in quite poor health. They raised three boys: Jim, John, and Glenwood. John was killed in the 

war. Jim married Thelma Carver and they are now in Brazil where his appointment takes him. They have two sons; Michael and John 

and a daughter; Linde Sherwood who is living on State Road. Glenwood has a lovely home east of Jim's. They have three girls and 

two boys: Tom, Bruce, Susan, Jill, and Judy, a very nice family.  

Mr, Haizlet bought the farm east of Charley Auxer and then Bud Young bought it. This place was formerly owned by Royal Burton 

and is now occupied by Bill Young, Bud's son. Bill married Dorothy Blair and they have three nice children: Becky, Dennis, and 

Jeffery. Bill's grandparents, Mr.' & Mrs. John Young, came here from Warren many years ago. They bought the beautiful home of Mr.  

& Mrs. Bush Bennettð-it was almost a show place. Mrs. Bennett had lived alone after the death of her husband. She had almost the 

first automobile in Parkman and she drove it, too! Mr. & Mrs. Young were very interested in Masons and Eastern Star and most of 

their children and grandchildren followed in their interests, Mr. & Mrs. Santamary now owns this home. They have made it a large 

and very beautiful nursery. They are a fine addition to our town. 

 On Grove Road I mentioned the Gunns and the Blairs. That was where the grandparents of Joe Urpi lived. It is now owned by Dale 

and Linda Gates. They have a parachuting instruction school and a very good one. Dale is the son of Vernon and Bertha Gates. We 

want to congratulate Vern and his son, Dick, for another settlement built by them called ''Stage Coach Drive". A very fine number of 

people live there. Vernon Gates died very suddenly on May 24, 1976. 

 In 1816 Isiah Davis of New York bought four hundred acres lying east of Garrettsville Road, including land owned by Henry Elwell, 

who died and was buried with Masonic services. His land was divided among the children. Henry received the frame house and land 

that was later owned by Dr. French, acting physician in 1854 after Dr. Scott. Henry Linsley was also a farmer and owned a large farm 

on the McCall road. They were here with the early pioneers. The house was sold a couple of times. Henry had a daughter, Mabelle. 

who went to school from there. She graduated from Parkman and was a teacher in Auburn school. She later married Forrest Baird, son 

of Edwin Baird. They had two daughters: Ruth McConnell, a dietitian at Orange school and Edna, a teacher in California. They also 

had a son, Rex, who lives in Warren. They are a fine Christian family. 

One of the early settlers in Parkman was Ira Waterman who settled here in 1819. Mr. Waterman's sister was Mrs. Baird, mother of 

Edwin, who was a soldier in the fifth regiment of the New York Heavy Artillery in the War of the Rebellion. Mr. and Mrs. Edwin 

Baird had four children: Austa, Laura, Forrest, and Paul. Austa is the only child still living. Forrest was a farmer and later bought the 

grist mill, which he operated for many years. He sold it to N.E. Moss who operated it for many years and then decided to farm more 

extensively and sold the business. However, a few years later to the sadness of everyone, the old grist mill was burned.  



   

The McCall's had two farms on McCall Road. Sam Irwin, George Irwin's brother, came from Holmes County and bought one of the 

farms. After leaving the farm he and his son, Jessie, built a new house across the Mill Pond. Then later his son, Jessie, and wife, 

Kathryn, lived there and later sold to Mr. and Mrs. Peck. The home is now owned by Robert Kovach. Another McCall farm was sold 

to Mr. Sturdevant and then to Frank and Mary Soltis, who worked very hard and became big farmers. They had several children: 

James, who married Hazel Gates; Frank, Rose, Helen, Agnes, Emil, Eddie, and Bernice (Baptie).  

Jim and Hazel have a large farm and Jim is an extensive dairy farmer. The Soltis family is one to be proud of. Mr. Soltis owned quite a 

bit of property in town and several farms. Bernice, the youngest, married Kenneth Baptie and they had four nice girls.  

One of the pioneers in Parkman was James M. Cone who passed away at the age of 89. Frank Cone's-fathers folks came from Ireland 

in 1846 with one boy and a baby girl in arms. The little boy died on the trip over and was buried at sea. They came over in a sail boat 

and were 7 weeks at sea. They came to Rochester, New York, and lost another boy while living there. They then moved to Parkman to 

work on the Clinton Air Line which was to be a railroad through Parkman, but it did not develop. This left James and Mary Cone to 

farm in Parkman. James Cone, the son, went to work for Owen Dunn on a farm now owned by Stanley Smith. Flora Smith lived on 

the farm across the road. This later became Ray Cone's farm. Hence, James met Flora and they were married. James Cone was very 

interested in horses. In fact, he devoted his life to raising and training horses. He was a prominent horse breeder and started with a 

famous brood mare, "Rosy Gold Leaf". He drove at many fairs. One of the most unusual was at the Fair of 1924 when every driver 

was over 70. There were six entries and Mr. Cone won. Forrest Cone has continued in his father's footsteps. He is still training horses 

at the age of 94. Mrs. William Cromwell was a sister to James Cone, and mother of William H. Cromwell who died in 1953. As I 

mentioned previously. Will had a sister, Mame Veber, who is 96 and lives with her daughter in Cleveland. A brother, Arthur, died at 

the age of 97. Another sister, Myrtle Sparrow, is 86 and still lives in Parkman. Her husband was Lou Sparrow who clerked in 

Cromwell's store for many years and later worked in the Post House Restaurant. They had a daughter, Wilma, who is now widowed 

and has two children. Frank Cone was first married to Laura Baird and later married Hattie Brown. They sold the Cone farm to 

Stanley Smith and bought the place once owned by Edwin Baird and later by Frank Owen. Hattie Cone was a fine lady and a great 

worker. She belonged to the Mothers Club for many years and was secretary for several years. We missed Hattie when she passed 

away suddenly on Thanksgiving night two years ago. 

The N. E. Moss family is a Christian family. They have six daughters and two sons: Esther Wolfe, Beatrice Bossow, Kaye Villers, 

Gladys Hoffman, Barbara Thorn, Sue Ann, Harald, and Howard. Kaye and Don Villers have three children: Scott, Guy, and Jeffery 

who live in Parkman. They are a very delightful family.  

In 1819 Mr. Seth Smith came to Parkman from Madison, New York, and bought land on the southern boundary of the township on 

which he built a log cabin and later a frame house. I believe Mrs. Pitcher and her sons live in this house. Mr. Smith had a family of 

seven sons, four of whom, settled in this vicinity, and this gave the name of Smithville to that part of the township ða name which 

still remains. Ransom and Marsh Smith came before their father. Marsh moved to Chardon and held an important office for many 

years.  

David White and his wife, Mary Coombs, came from Massachusetts and settled in Farmington, where they lived from 1840 to 1845. 

They moved to Parkman and bought fifty acres from C. Isabel who had purchased it from Mr. Perkins and Mr. Dixon in 1836. Celeste 

White, David's daughter, married Alanson Bestor in 1940. At his death in 1852, she came to Parkman with two sons. Her two brothers 

lived in Michigan and Tennessee. The brothers deeded the farm, to C. M. Bestor in 1867. The farm was passed on to the oldest 

grandson, Roy Bestor, in 1911. Evelyn is not living on the farm and helping her son who operates the farm. This is the sixth or seventh 

generation to live on this farm. The house is located on the corner of Nelson Road over the White Bridge. Roy Bestor, Evelyn's father, 

had a gladiola farm and delivered many loads of glads, Grandfather Bester built a home on Route 282 and later sold it to Mills who 

later sold it to Mr. and Mrs. George Fenton, who may not be the very oldest, but have been here for many years. Roy Bestor had three 

brothers: Walter, Ernie, and Lynn. Ernie died when young. Evelyn was Roy's only child and she married Joe Blackford.  They had two 



sons and two daughters: Harold, an electrician; Janet Holloway, a teacher and a nurse; Roy Blackford, a physician and farmer; and 

Lucile Thompson, who was a technician at Geauga Community Hospital. Lucile married Glenn Thompson, a very important man in 

Parkman. 

 Back to Madison Road-South. John L. Moore owned the next place south of the Reynolds places, which was purchased by Jackson 

Robb and then sold to Stephen Parkhurst in 1857. In 1878 the land was owned by Burt and Bernham Tinker. It was first settled by 

Andrew Foote in 1839, and on the west side settled by Joshua Newell in 1837, who sold it to Sam Durand and then to Benjamin 

Tinker, who later deeded it to his two sons who built houses. Bart's home is on the west, Bernham's son, Breck's, home is on the south 

on the same side of the road, and Bernham.'s home is across the road. Burt Tinker had a daughter, Mabel who married Frank 

Blackmarr who was instrumental in building the big Blackmarr block, which was the town hall and fire hall and has been used for 

Masonic and Eastern Star meetings for many years. Mabel Blackmarr died leaving eleven children, many of whom graduated from 

Parkman High School, There are only two of her children living now: Melodia and Ralph. Mr. Tinker married again and had a 

daughter, Jessie, who married Charles Cook. Jessie was a talented pianist and gave lessons. She died, leaving behind twin girls: Ruth 

and Rose. Ruth married Arnold Smith and lives in Parkman. They have a daughter, Carol, who was in a bad accident and is paralyzed. 

She is a very brave lady and has three children.  

After the Parkhurst family came the Parsons. Frank and Julia Kovach now live on that farm and also own land across the road. They 

have two sons: Frank and Robert; and a daughter: Shirley. The farm next to theirs is the Oscar Irwin farm which" was once owned by 

Frank and Kollie Brown, from whom Oscar bought the farm. 

The next farm was owned by John Kingsbury and then by Daniel B. Hosmer who sold it to Arthur Jones. Mr. Jones was a soldier in 

the War of the Rebellion. He was confined to Andersonville prison for some time and narrowly escaped death in the blowing up of the 

Sultana on the Mississippi river. Mr. and Mrs. Jones had two sons: Ellsworth who married Hattie Horton (they lived in Bundysburg 

and later in Youngstown), and Harry, who married Ollie Cook (Fred Cook's daughter) and was the dentist in Parkman for many years. 

Harry and Ollie had four children: Christine, Helen, Rex, and Fredericka. Christine, the oldest daughter, married Harry Chappelle. She 

taught music, piano, and accordionða very fine musician. She later married Vern Teeple. They both died of heart attacks. Helen 

married Hugo Vanalderwelt of California. Fredericka is still living in the west. She is the only living member of the family. Rex 

married Josephine Gunn. They separated and both remarried. Joe married Uno Urpi, they were both teachers and a fine couple. 

Josephine's parents lived in the Grove. Her father's name was Carl Gunn and her mother was a Williams. There were other children in 

the Gunn family: Paul, George who died when only fifteen, Minnie (Harris), and Carl. They were a family to remember. Getting back 

to the Fred Cook family:  Harry Cook married Vanchie Davis, Ollie married Harry Jones, Lula married Phil Dennis, one sister married 

Harry Rhodes, and Minnie married Ed Donaldson.  

The Arthur Jones farm was later sold and bought by George Farley, Sr. and George Farley., Jr. "who came from England with their 

wives in 1912. They were very prosperous and congenial farmers. They 'were an active part of all of the activities in our town. 

George, Jr. was Master of the Lodge, Patron of the Eastern Star, Clerk of the Church, Clerk of the Trustees, and more. His wife was a 

wonderful lady who was full of fun. They had a son, Hilton, who married Evelyn, a very gracious and accommodating lady. Hilton is 

a telegrapher in the airport station. They also had a daughter, Kathleen, who works in the bankða sweet lady. She married Milan 

Robinson, a very courteous and sincere man. They have a daughter, Evelyn, who now lives in Andover; and a son, Tom, who is an 

optometrist and lives in Oregon. Hilton is very ambitious with three farmer jobs and as a big sugar maker. He and Evelyn are very 

faithful church members and give of their time to church 

duties.  

Now we come to the Norman Smith place. Norman Smith 

was a son of Ransom Smith, one of the early settlers in 

the southern part of the town. He held the rank of 

Lieutenant in the War of the Rebellion. Decatur, another 

son of Ransom Smith, was a soldier in the War of 1812, 

He purchased land 1½  miles north of Parkman. He had a 

large family, most of whom lived and grew up in 

Parkman. His daughter, Ella Moore, once lived in and ran 

the hotel in the home that is now owned by Elma Lane. 

This house was built in 1814. At one time it was a hotel 

owned by Parkman and Paine.  



Mr. Dustan took quite a tract of land.   He chopped wood at night and taught school in the daytime. 

 Mr. Hatch moved to town and built a house in 1873. His house was very near, if not on the spot, where the first trees were felled and 

Mr. Parkman built the first log cabin. His son, Horace, was wounded in the war, and two other sons died in the War of the Rebellion. 

We shall now return to Route 422. 'Ray Cone married Stella Hosmer, daughter of Chester who lived on a farm known as the Dunn 

Farm. There were three boys: Forrest, Ray, and Frank Cone. All the boys were farmers interested in horses and sometimes driving 

race horses. Ray and Frank remained on farms with large sugar bushes. Ray and Stella had four children: Paul, Jamie, Maurice, and 

Marjorie. Marjorie married Adam Ashðthey are both deceased. Paul married Etta Hurd, Jarnie married Olive Gilmore, and Maurice 

married Grace Ward. Etta Hurd came from a large family. They lived on a farm owned by Curt More. They were a very fine family 

whose mother was a wonderful cook. Charlotte Cromwell loved to visit Etta and eat Mrs. Hurd's good cooking. Flora Hurd married 

Roger Hoxter, a big farmer on Route 422. Ralph married Pauline Owen and they live in Troy. Harry lives in Southington. Jamie Cone 

became famous with his ability to take part in Masonic and Eastern Star services. His wife, Olive, is a very active and capable Eastern 

Star. Maurice, a busy electrician, and Grace are both very energetic.  

Jim Cone's wife, Flora Dunn, was a double cousin to Hattie Smith, who was a sister to Clayton Smith. Clayton Smith and Mr. Johnson 

helped in building the creamery which they operated for many years.  

The O. C. Smith Inc. Creamery and Cheese 

factory was built by Messrs. Budlong and 

Stokes from New York City in 1863. After 

Mr. Stokes' long drives collecting milk, his 

horses were cared for at Martin Hewitt's 

blacksmith shop. The town had turned to 

agriculture. In 1881, O. C. Smith had 

patented rotary cheese vats in his factory 

that were run by steam. In 1880 over two 

hundred and sixty thousand pounds of 

cheese were made netting farmers nearly 

$27,000.00. In 1867 the cheese factory was 

purchased by O. C. Smith and Volney 

Johnson, who conducted the business for 

many years. O. C. Smith was Clayton Smith 

and Hattie Smith Johnson's father. Clayton 

Smith married Ida Blair and had a son, 

Howard, who was a large dairyman all of his 

life. Howard married Alice Randall, who 

lived on Tavern Road. Her father was also a farmer. To them were born seven children, their son, Forrest, was killed in World. 'War 

II, and one boy died at the age of five. They are an outstanding family. Stanley is a big farmer, dairyman, and sugar maker. Stanley 

and Agnes (Monroe) Smith live on the farm, known as the Cone farm. Their children have all graduated from high school and have all 

been to Youngstown College, where Agnes is a professor. They have been a very important family in our town, and very helpful in the 

community.  

The sons of Nick Soltis, Jim and Steve, were born in Nelson. Jim and Marie have six children and are a very energetic couple. Jim is 

one of our trustees and I am sure he will do what he thinks is right. 

   



   

William Cromwell had a store on the corner for many years. In 1943 he sold it to Mr. Al George. He did not have a drug store, but he 

had a meat counter which encouraged many customers to come in. Al and Dorothy, along with their four children: Dick, Allen, David, 

and Don, operated the store very successfully for many years. Al and Dorothy decided to move to Florida, so Don and Shirley took 

over the store and did very well. We certainly missed the store on the corner when they closed. Don has a fine position at the Johnson 

Rubber factory. They have four lovely children: Susan, Sheri, Cindy, and Danny. 

 

Parkman Town Center - pre the 1898 fire. 

 Another important event was the fire which destroyed all of the stores in 1898. There were two replaced, Mr. Cromwell's and Mr. 

Bundy's stores. Mr. Bundy was later bought out by Charles Agler and then by Volney Johnson. The store was also owned by Ola and 

Allie Wygandt. Mr. Wygandt was an undertaker and a barber, and Ola was the storekeeper. 

This store was later bought by Tom Garber and Phadima (Hopkins) Garber. They were also storekeepers and Tom the barber.  They 

were surely an important part of our town. Tom charged 25 cents for a haircut and 10 cents for a shave. Phadima was from a family of 

six girls. They lived on High Street close to where Mr. Parkman built his first log cabin. Phadima and Tom had a son, Gilbert, who is 

an important businessman, and a daughter, Thora Alvord of Chardon. Thora has surely been a faithful Parkmanite.  She is always 

willing whenever there is anything or someone has an occasion for her to participate.  

There were several Farleys. I mentioned George and his son, Hilton, and daughter, Kathleen. Let us proceed then with Jim who came 

here more than seventy years ago from England. He married Nellie, who was one of the sweetest ladies. They had two sons: Paul and 

Jamie; and a daughter, Marguerite, who died when in her twenties. Paul married Arabelle who is still a beautiful lady. Jamie, a soldier 

in World War 1, married Emma, a nurse. They were very capable and important people who were much help during the flu epidemic. 

Paul and Arabelle had four sons: Howard, Gene, Edison, and Alton, who were very well educated. The girls are: Marjorie, Jeanette, 

Maxine, and Bernice. Howard, Paul and Jamie are deceased. Marjorie is married and a capable business lady. Maxine has a grown 

family and is a fine lady. Jeanette married Floyd Loomis and is a dental technician. Bernice married Joe Wells, a capable 

businessman, and is a teacher in Cardinal school. She was choir director, is quite musical and has a lovely voice. Bernice and Joe have 

five lovely children: Nancy, Gary, Michael, Steve, and Susan.  A truly Christian family. 



 Now there was a man who had a saw mill for many years, known as Chester Adams. He had four children: Kitty, Mabel, Ella, and 

Reddie, a son. One of his relatives in Parkman is Kitty's son Jim Everett. Jim and his wife, Beatrice, have three children: William 

Thrasher, David, and Rae Ann. They are very active in the Chamber of Commerce and are ambitious citizens.  

Other families living near Stanley Smith were Ellsworth Owen and George Owen.  George lived on Owen Road and Ellsworth on 

Route 422. George married May Davis, daughter of Jimmy Davis who lived on the corner of Tavern Road toward the cemetery. May 

Owen is a sister of Vanchie Cook, Harry Cook's wife. George and May had several important children: Pauline Hurd, Cecil, Rodger, 

Merle, Forrest, and Alton. Cecil and Rodger are not living.  

We must not forget an important family by the name of Tucker, they were very remarkable. All nine children attended Parkman 

school and graduated. Many of them attended college, and only one, Gertrude, is deceased.  Virginia (Peggy) married Chester Warner, 

brother of Clif, who we mentioned before was husband of Jessie Owen. Chet was a wonderful man. He was revered and loved by 

everyone. He took a very active part in Masons, Eastern Star, church, and volunteer firemen, etc.  Peggy has been important in our 

town and is an active member of Eastern Star. Chester died in 1968 of a stroke and long sickness. Peggy has recently remarried and is 

again living in Parkman after living in Painesville for a few years. 

In regard to the saw mill owned by Mr. Adams, it was sold to Mr. Guy Norton, who operated it for many years. Guy came from a 

large family. His grandfather lived on Bardford Road, which runs south from Evans Road. Guy was a very good musician and he 

organized and played in our Buckeye Band. Organized in 1886, Clayton Smith, William Cromwell, Voiney Johnson, and Guy Norton 

are the charter members. The band was famous all over the county. They played for many things in Parkman as well as surrounding 

towns. One of the famous Nortons was Melvin, Superintendent of the school in Parkman for thirty years. He set a very good example 

for all the young people. His name will always be remembered.  He married Ruby Browning, her father was John Browning and her 

mother was the sister of Ed Bundy. They were pioneers whose grandparents lived in Bundysburg. Guy Norton's daughter, Hilda, is 

also an outstanding musician and has been the church organist for nearly fifty years.  

  

Parkmanôs Buckeye Band Founding Members   Parkmanôs Buckeye Band  . 

  


